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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Peoples Bank and Trust Company is a two-story, 1imestone-veneered building
facing north in the Tupelo central business district. The monumental three-bay
facade is anchored by two entrances set within pedimented architraves surmounted
by cartouches and flanked by pilasters with capitals articulated in rosettes and
moldings (bead and ree], egg and dart). A large round-arched window with keystone
and architrave trim is centered in the central bay. The upper portion of the win-
dow is composed of beveled, lTeaded glass with a Christmas wreath design of holly
and berries in green and red.

A full entablature divides the first and second floors, with the fenestration
of the latter expressed in two contrasting geometric forms: round-arched window
openings in the outer bays, accentuated by hood mo1ds; and two rectangular windows
in the inner bays. The bracketed, dentiled cornice is decorated with standards
carrying multiple stone globes and is surmounted by a plain parapet... The proaect1ng
bay of the east side of the building has a first-floor pedimented and enframed win-
dow and a second-floor round-arched window with hood mold. The rest of the east
wall has seven f]at—arched, fixed-window openings on the first floor and eleven
double-hung openings on the second floor.

The original floor plan consisted of banking offices and board room on the
first floor and several dentists' offices on the second floor, reached from a
stairway at the north entrance. The entrance way is now sea]ed and used as a
night depository. After a fire in 1918, a two-story banking space was created
in the front two-thirds of the building and a vault and second-story office space
in the rear third. A balcony was added to the rear portion of the banking space
during the 1950s. ,

A continuous molding d1v1d1ng the first and second floors of the interior
provides a base for pilasters with recessed panels and acanthus leaf designs in
low relief. Pilaster capitals have brackets that support boxed ceiling beams
which form coffers, now filled with fluorescent lighting fixtures. All of the
extant furnishings are of contemporary design. In preparation for the restoration
of the building, bank officials have recovered original brass.and. iron cages, brass
railings, a spittoon,directors' tables, and the earliest ledgers used by the institu-
tion. These will be displayed in a restored board room on the second floor and in
an area on tne first floor accessible to customers.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Founded in 1904, Peoples Bank and Trust Company is Mississippi's eighth

largest banking institution (The Mississippi Banker

p. 12) and plays an impor-

tant role in the financial affairs and economic development of Tupelo and the

northern part of the state.

The bank has overcome severe economic and physical

hardships, including the Great Depression and the 1936 tornado which killed 233
Tupelo residents-and devastated forty-two c1ty blocks (South Reporter, April 9,

1936).
example of the monumental Beaux Arts style, adapting Greco-Roman detail to the
exterior and interior finish and expressing, despite its modest scale, the ‘

Constructed in 1905, the building is architecturally a handsome local |

prominent position of this pioneer banking institution.
The enthusiastic application of classical elements on the facade of the |
building exhibits the ambitijous attempt to create a monumental structure in |

the context of Tupelo's early commercial district.

|
{

Furthermore, the 1imestone’

veneer provides a formalistic effect in contrast to the brick and pressed-metal

facings of other downtown buildings.

The academic intent of the architectural

composition is established on the exterior by intensive use of pediment and
round arch, hood mold and flat arch, architraves, applied pilasters, cartouches,
dentils, and consoles; on the 1nter1or, 1t 1s expressed by coffers and h1gh1y
ornamented pilasters.
A fire in 1918 extensively damaged the 1nter1or of the bu11d1ng A, T.
Heussler, a St. Louis architect, was commissioned to renovate the interior,
completing the project in 1919 (McMi]]an interview, April 11, 1978). Peoples
Bank was clased fur four years during the Great Depression, and the reopening

was affirmed by a U.S. Supreme Court decision.

The plan to reopen the bank

on May 24, 1933, approved by the depositors' committee, a majority of bank
depositors, the Mississippi Banking Commission, and the chancery clerk of Lee
County, was appealed to the Supreme Court by two objecting bank depos1tors
The Court agreed to hear the case and, on June 5, affirmed the bank's reopening

plan (Stockholders Meeting Minutes, June 8, 1934)

By 1973, Peoples Bank had

paid back 175 per cent (one hundred seventy-five dollars for every one hundred
dollars) of the funds owed all depositors affected by the 1929 closing (McMillan
interview, April 11, 1978).
Peoples Bank has grown considerably in seventy-four years, from an initial
deposit value of $30,250 in March, 1904 (Statement of Condition, October 13,

to total assets of $180, 056 407 in March, 1978 (The M1SS1SS1pp1 Banker

1904),
p. 12)

In 1952, the bank 1nsta1led the first dr1ve -in facility in northern

Mississippi and, in 1963, expanded the banking offices of the original facility
Currently, Peoples Bank operates

to a building adjacent to the 1905 structure.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

North side faces Main Street. An alley on the east side passes south and west around

the south side. Building with party on the west side. Thirty-foot frontage, 100
feet deep. Lot No. 6, City of Tupelo.
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seven offices in Tupelo, with eight branches located in Prentiss, Pontotoc (Bank
of Pontotoc), and Clay (Clay City Bank and Trust Company) counties (Peoples Annual
Report, 1977 p. 1). Construction of a new downtown banking and office facility
will begin in 1979.

Peoples Bank has supported and encouraged municipal improvements for Tupelo,
such as the donation in 1966 of road frontage along Eastern Boulevard for street
improvements (Eason interview, April 14, 1978) and the donation in 1936 of eleven
acres for the construction of Tupelo's North Mississippi Community Hospital, now
called the Northern Mississippi Medical Center (Deed Book 268:109). The interest
of the bank in the physical improvement of downtown Tupelo is currently reflected
in the restoration plans underway for the subject property.
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